ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
SENATE JUDI Cl ARY STANDI NG COW TTEE
Cct ober 30, 2007
9:17 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senator Hollis French, Chair
Senator Charlie Huggins, Vice Chair
Senator Bill W el echowski

Senat or Gene Therri aul t

VEMBERS ABSENT
Senator Lesil MCuire
OTHER LEG SLATORS PRESENT

Senat or Joe Thomas
Senat or Lyman Hof f man
Representati ve Buch

COWM TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BI LL NO. 2001
“"An Act relating to the production tax on oil and gas and to
conservation surcharges on oil; relating to the issuance of
advisory bulletins and the disclosure of certain information
relating to the production tax and the sharing between agencies
of certain information relating to the production tax and to oil
and gas or gas only |eases; anending the State Personnel Act to
place in the exenpt service certain state oil and gas auditors
and their imrediate supervisors; establishing an oil and gas tax
credit fund and authorizing paynent from that fund; providing
for retroactive application of certain statutory and regul atory
provisions relating to the production tax on oil and gas and
conservation surcharges on oil; making conform ng anmendnents;
and providing for an effective date.”

HEARD AND HELD

PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
Bl LL: SB2001

SHORT TITLE: O L & GAS TAX AMENDVMENTS
SPONSOR(S): RULES BY REQUEST OF THE GOVERNOR

10/ 18/ 07 (S) READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -1- Oct ober 30, 2007



10/ 18/ 07 (S) RES, JUD, FIN

10/ 19/ 07 (S) RES AT 9: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205

10/ 19/ 07 (S) Heard & Hel d

10/ 19/ 07 (S) M NUTE( RES)

10/ 20/ 07 (S) RES AT 8: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205

10/ 20/ 07 (S) Heard & Hel d

10/ 20/ 07 (S) M NUTE( RES)

10/ 21/ 07 (S) RES AT 1: 00 PM HOUSE FI NANCE 519

10/ 21/ 07 (S) Heard & Hel d

10/ 21/ 07 (S) M NUTE( RES)

10/ 22/ 07 (S) RES AT 11:30 AM BUTROVI CH 205

10/ 22/ 07 (S) Heard & Hel d

10/ 22/ 07 (S) M NUTE( RES)

10/ 23/ 07 (S) RES AT 9:00 AM BUTROVI CH 205

10/ 23/ 07 (S) Heard & Hel d

10/ 23/ 07 (S) M NUTE( RES)

10/ 24/ 07 (S) RES AT 10: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205

10/ 24/ 07 (S) Heard & Hel d

10/ 24/ 07 (S) M NUTE( RES)

10/ 25/ 07 (S) RES AT 10: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205

10/ 25/ 07 (S) Heard & Hel d

10/ 25/ 07 (S) M NUTE( RES)

10/ 26/ 07 (S) RES AT 1:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

10/ 26/ 07 (S) Heard & Hel d

10/ 26/ 07 (S) M NUTE( RES)

10/ 27/ 07 (S) RES AT 9: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205

10/ 27/ 07 (S) Moved CSSB2001(RES) Qut of Committee

10/ 27/ 07 (S) M NUTE( RES)

10/ 28/ 07 (S) RES AT 0: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205

10/ 28/ 07 (S) -~ MEETI NG CANCELED - -

10/ 29/ 07 (S) RES RPT CS 1NR 6AM NEW TI TLE

10/ 29/ 07 (S) NR. GREEN

10/ 29/ 07 (S) AM HUGG NS, MCGUI RE, STEVENS, STEDMAN,
W ELECHOWSKI , \WAGONER

10/ 29/ 07 (S) JUD AT 9:30 AM BUTROVI CH 205

10/ 29/ 07 (S) Heard & Hel d

10/ 29/ 07 (S) M NUTE( JUD)

10/ 30/ 07 (S) JUD AT 9:00 AM BUTROVI CH 205

W TNESS REQ STER

DONALD BULLOCK, Counsel

Legi slative Affairs Agency

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Drafted SB 2001 and comented on industry
standards and deducti ons.

JONATHAN | VERSEN, Director

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 2- Oct ober 30, 2007



Tax Division
Depart ment of Revenue (DOR)
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Expl ai ned auditing | anguage for SB 2001.

GARY A. ROCERS, CPA, Supervisor

Production Tax Audit G oup

Depart ment of Revenue (DOR)

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Spoke in favor of SB 2001.

PAT MARTI NDALE, Omner

Martindal e Consultants

Ol ahoma City, K

PCsSI TI ON STATEMENT: Conment ed, Vi a t el econf erence, on
producti ons cost st at utes.

MARI LYN CROCKETT, Executive Director

Al aska O | and Gas Associ ati on (AOCE)

Anchor age, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Introduced M. WIIians.

TOM W LLI AMS, Chair

AOCGA Tax Conmittee

Al aska O | and Gas Associ ati on (ACGA)

Anchor age, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on tax issues in SB 2001.

ANTONY SCOTT, Commerci al Anal yst

Division of Gl and Gas

Depart ment of Natural Resources (DNR)

Anchor age, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Conmented on tax issues in SB 2001.

JERRY BURNETT, Director

Adm ni strative Services Division

Depart ment of Revenue (DOR)

Juneau, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Commented the tax credit fund in SB 2001.

BERNARD HAJNY, Manager

Production Taxes and Royalties

BP Expl oration Al aska

Anchor age, AK

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Answered questions regarding BP spil
cl eanup costs.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 3- Oct ober 30, 2007



CHAIR HOLLIS FRENCH called the Senate Judiciary Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 9:17:01 AM Present at the call to
order were Senators Huggins, Therriault, and French.

SB2001-O L & GAS TAX AMENDMENTS

9:17: 36 AM

CHAI R FRENCH announced the consideration of SB 2001. Before the
commttee was CSSB 2001(RES), |abeled 25-GS0014\M He said a BP
representative had testified yesterday that repealing AS
43.55.165 (c) and (d) would send a signal that the comm ssioner
woul d no | onger have the discretion to allow or require the use
of billed or billable costs. He asked M. Bullock to discuss
joint interest billings and the repealer of tw subsections in
AS 43.55. 165.

9:18: 33 AM

DONALD BULLOCK, Counsel, Legislative Affairs Agency, said any
time you repeal sonmething it raises the question of what it
means. In isolation, if you repeal it, then there would be the
inplication that you can’'t |look at that any nore. However, you
can’t look at the repeal ed subsections of AS 43.55.165 (c) and
(d) in isolation; they're part of a larger bill. Included in
this larger bill is the anendnent to AS 43.55.165(a), which is
in Section 19 of CSSB 2001(RES) and in Section 56 of the
governors bill (SB 2001).

MR, BULLOCK said his reading of AS 43.55.165(a) gives the
departnment the discretion to determne whether costs are
al | owabl e under the standards that are presented there (page 16,
line 2, of CSSB 2001(RES)). Costs nust be incurred upstream of
the point of production for oil and gas; the costs nust be
ordinary and necessary costs of exploring, developing, and
produci ng; and the exploring costs nust be direct costs. This
| anguage doesn’t preclude the departnment from | ooking at those
costs. Perhaps the repeal puts |ess enphasis on the use of those
costs, “but the departnent’s given the discretion in the
anendnent to .165(a) to put whatever is out there -- to see if
the costs neet the criteria that are established in .165(a).”

9:20: 23 AM

CHAIR FRENCH said that the PPT was enacted just one year ago and
in it the comm ssioner was granted authority to |look at those
costs in the two subsections that are now being repealed. It
isnt as if the PPT has 20 years of fights in court about what
costs are allowed and what aren’'t. So repealing it wouldn't be
undoi ng a | ong standi ng practi ce.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -4- Oct ober 30, 2007



MR. BULLOCK agreed and said he didn't believe an audit of the
returns that were filed on April 1 had been conpleted. Under
current law, the departnent has three years to conplete that
audit. The legislature can put on the record the interpretation
that the departnent can continue to consider these things in
determining the ordinary and necessary costs. Alternatively, a
clearer nessage in .165(a) could say that the information the
departnment may | ook at may include the type of things that were
in (c) and (d), but he didn’t think that was necessary.

9:22:32 AM
SENATOR THERRI AULT asked if putting something in statute would
be har nf ul

MR. BULLOCK replied that putting it in statute would create a
ot of appeals. If it says “may consider” the departnent would
be challenged to say why it didn't consider it or give it nore
weight. To give the departnment the broadest discretion to use
whatever information it feels is relevant to support its
assessnment, it is best to leave it as the legislative record.

9:23: 56 AM
JONATHAN | VERSEN, Director, Tax Division, Departnent of Revenue
(DOR) agreed with M. Bullock. He said the departnment still has

authority under its general powers to require any information it
needs in order to reach a calculation of the tax. However, he
pointed out that the reporting requirenents in section 16(f)(5)
of the CS expressly reference joint interest billings. So, the
departnment can | ook at those.

In regard to the repealer, AS 43.55.165(c) and (d), he pointed
out that the department has several concerns. One is from Gary
Rogers, supervisor, of the G| and Gas Revenue Audit Section, on
an adm nistrative standpoint that starts with .165(c) posing the
guestion of whether the taxpayer has substantial consistency
between the joint interest billings and the standards that are
set forth in the statute and the departnent’s regulations. |If
the departnment nmakes a finding referring to costs that are
billable as |lease expenditures wunder the joint operating
agreenent, AS 43.55.165(d) takes that a step further by also
posing the question to the departnent of whether there is
substantial incentive and ability to effectively audit by the
other working interest owners. This poses an admnistrative
probl em because the audit is looking in the past to determ ne
whet her there has been substantial consistency and the incentive
and ability to audit to determne the future. Also, these

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 5- Oct ober 30, 2007



agreenents are noving targets. The accounting procedures in
these joint interest agreenents are not set in stone. The
departnment would essentially be auditing the agreenent and then
auditing the joint interest audit. This creates a nulti-track
adm ni strative probl em

9:28:19 AM
SENATOR W ELECHOWEKI j oi ned t he heari ng.

9:28: 50 AM

GARY A. ROCERS, CPA, Supervisor, Production Tax Audit G oup,
Departnment of Revenue, added that in witing regulations to
i mpl enent 165(c) and (d), he is being asked to wite regul ations
t hat make subjective judgnents about whether or not Al aska has
i ndustry standards. He hired consultants who cane up with a
variety of agreements on what “substantially consistent” neans,
and he decided that rather than create adm nistrative fights in
the future, he wanted to publish the departnment’s own standard
of what |ease expenditures are. He said that (d) also asks the
auditors or the regulation drafters to nake the subjective
judgnment of what is effective auditing if the joint interest
parties are auditing each other. “How do we define effective?
How do we know that what was effective in the past has continued
in the future?” H's division is put in the position of auditing
their auditors rather than the tax returns.

CHAI R FRENCH noted that Senators Stevens and Thomas had | oi ned
the neeting a whil e ago.

SENATOR HUGA NS asked if current |anguage allows, but doesn’t
require, the flexibility to look at the joint interest billings.

MR. ROCGERS replied that is correct. Any auditor, whether state,
federal or independent, auditing oil and gas |ease expenditures
that are subject to unit operating agreenents would | ook at the
joint interest billings and unit agreenents.

MR. | VERSEN noted the policy concern of these provisions. His
staff are put in a tenuous position because they haven't done
any activity under this section. The concern is shifting the
determ nation of what costs are allowable to the taxpayer. The
departnment would be noving from its normal “trust-but-verify
perspective” to a scenario of the taxpayers saying “trust us,
but let us verify it ourselves,” and particularly in .165(d).

He said these sections also reference the final resolutions of
these clainms that are contested between the parties to the unit

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 6- Oct ober 30, 2007



operating and joint interest agreenents, and they won't
necessarily be aligned with the state’s interest. Another
concern, he said, is a potential gap between statutory standards
and whatever “substantial conpliance” neans. Because of this
gap, there can be another gap as to how this provision is
adm ni stered between taxpayers, because one can’'t be treated
differently than another.

9:33: 27 AM

MR. |1 VERSEN said ultimately this concept sets another |ayer of
anbiguity and shifts responsibility to where it shouldn't be. He
stated that the responsibility should lie with the departnent
and that the additional |anguage should give himthe affirmtive
responsibility to set forth in regulations what allowable costs
are.

CHAIR FRENCH said it occurs to himthat since there is no body
of law and precedent with respect to what his practices are
going to be, that at this stage of the ganme, to repeal these two
perm ssive practices doesn't take away his authority to use them
if he decides to. But it doesn’t bind himto use themeither.

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked if that is howthe CSis witten.
MR. BULLOCK replied yes.

9:34: 44 AM
CHAIR FRENCH turned to the issue of corrosion starting at
section 21, AS 43.55.165(e) on page 19.

MR. | VERSEN said this provision intends to hit the same policy
obj ectives expressed in SB 80 but with a different take. It has
a different trigger point and takes the auditor away from making
a determnation of inproper nmaintenance or negligence, which
really isn't their purview Those are legal or engineering
i ssues. The provision refers to unscheduled interruptions or
reductions in production or spills/releases of a hazardous
substance. The <costs incurred for repair or replacenent or
deferred maintenance of facilities, equipment, and structures
(with a carve-out for wells) would be excluded from |ease
expenditures, which nmeans they would be excluded from both the
deductions credits. The reason for the well carve-out is because
there is a greater degree of geologic uncertainty associated
with wells. The end of the section inserts a quasi force nmmjeure
provision that is the sanme as |anguage in CERCLA (Conprehensive
Envi ronnent al Response, Conpensation and Liability Act of 1980)
— that basically excludes liability for the repair or

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -7- Oct ober 30, 2007



replacenent if it was necessary due to an act of war, an
unantici pated grave natural disaster, or sone other sort of

i nevi tabl e phenonmenon - as long as the effects of that could
not have been reasonably prevented or was not from intentiona
or negligent acts of a third party - as long as the operator

acted with due care.

9: 38: 45 AM

MR. | VERSEN said that (a), (b) and (c) of this section delineate
what costs include and the neaning of hazardous substance (o0i
is included). Replacenent includes renovation and inprovenent.
He said Pat Martindale from Martindale Consulting hel ped draft
this provision.

9:40: 43 AM
CHAI R FRENCH asked hi m about the corrosion provision in SB 2001.

PAT MARTI NDALE, Martindale Consultants, Olahoma City, K
testifying via teleconference, gave his background in oil and
gas auditi ng.

CHAI R FRENCH asked if he has had experience working with these
types of provisions that try to exclude the deduction of costs
that are due to unscheduled interruptions or reductions in rates
of production due to problens wth inproper maintenance.

MR. MARTINDALE replied that his experience is working wth
industry in witing l|anguage to identify [indecipherable]
productions cost statutes in the md 1990s.

CHAIR FRENCH asked him to walk through a couple of scenarios
this provision would apply to.

9:45: 36 AM

MR. MARTI NDALE described a circunstance where an oil conpany had
to repair or replace its infrastructure where preventative
mai nt enance m ght have kept it from happeni ng.

9:47:16 AM

MR |IVERSEN clarified that M. Mrtindale was involved with this
statute as an advisor; he didn't draft the provision itself. He
asked M. Martindal e, because he is a contract auditor, how this
woul d be audit ed.

MR. MARTI NDALE expl ai ned that nobst conpani es woul d capture costs

(repair and replacenent) with work order project nunbers. The
current PPT audits would target each of the projects and

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 8- Oct ober 30, 2007



determ ne whether costs apply appropriately for either operating
or capital expenditures. The project would have to be described
and reviewed wth docunentation. Having this provision mght
cause a taxpayer to be reluctant to describe a project, so sone
work would be required to |ook at the wunderlying vouchers and
ot her docunents to see if the project is legitimte.

9:51:41 AM

CHAI R FRENCH t hanked M. Martindale and went on to the issue of
gas turbine maintenance. The turbines are frequently taken down
for maintenance, and such a problem would be difficult to pick
up on. He asked how narrow an application the l|language is for
specific pieces of equipnent, |ike the turbines.

9:52: 56 AM

MR. | VERSEN responded that part of this question goes to the
underlying policy of scheduled proactive nmaintenance that 1is
linked to a scheduled shutdown. If a turbine is replaced on a
regularly scheduled basis, this provision wouldn't pick up on
that - “it wouldn't even be on the radar screen.” It would
exclude the cost of repairing or replacing turbines from an
unschedul ed shutdown that is attributable to a turbine that just
blows out. This is a brighter line and broader than in SB 80 in
terms of the potential nunber of events, but it gets the state
out of a deeper hole in the sense of actually nmaking the
determ nations and the fights that are going to ensue regarding
what is or isn't negligent.

CHAI R FRENCH asked how the public would be able to tell if such
costs have been deduct ed.

MR. |IVERSEN directed the commttee to the nonthly reporting
requirenents in Section 16 of the CS. Section (f)(3) requires
reporting of any unscheduled interruption or reduction in the
rate of oil or gas production. That would be the first tip off.
A dip in production would al so be apparent to himin |ooking at
regul ar production reports. That would be questioned on an audit
and dependi ng on the response it mght be | ooked into deeper.

9:55:49 AM

MR. ROGERS concurred with M. Mrtindale who said that a conpany
is normally going to establish sonme sort of cost center, project
nunmber, AFE, or work order nunber to track costs related to sone
sort of incident or unscheduled breakdown, and the auditors
woul d | ook at the backup docunents for those.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -9- Oct ober 30, 2007



CHAI R FRENCH pointed out that those work orders wouldn't cone
with flags on them

MR. ROGERS sai d experienced auditors know what to | ook for.

9:57.:25 AM

SENATOR W ELECHOMSKI said the thing that offends nost Al askans
about the North Slope situation is that conpanies have acted
negligently and are able to deduct those costs. This is very
different than SB 80.

MR. | VERSEN replied this is actually nore of a strict liability
type of statute and, in his mnd, it is broader.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI said the difference is if a conmpany on the
North Slope has been negligent for years and then schedules a
shut down to fix that negligence, it can deduct those costs and
essentially the people of Al aska end up paying for the repairs.

MR. | VERSEN replied if it's part of their schedul ed regine, then
that is correct. Last year the incident was triggered by a |eak
and wasn’'t part of a scheduled nmaintenance program At sone
point the state will have to draw the line as to what is not
related to an incident.

CHAI R FRENCH said he didn't know if a body of historical records
existed that would allow the departnment to challenge whether a
pi ece of maintenance has been schedul ed or unschedul ed.

MR. | VERSEN answered that the trigger would be the shut down
with a dip in the production report.

10: 01: 36 AM
CHAIR FRENCH used the recent BP spill as an exanple and asked
about spotting a leak and calling for a “schedul ed” shut down.

MR. |IVERSEN replied that the departnent needs to keep the
legislative intent in mnd in witing the regulation for
schedul ed mai nt enance. The scheduling has to be reasonabl e.

10: 03: 14 AM

SENATOR HUGE NS posed a scenario of installing a valve that
fails the following day that causes an interruption and asked if
t hat woul d qualify.

MR. | VERSEN replied yes, but he said he was trying to reduce
anbiguity and get out of those gray areas.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 10- Oct ober 30, 2007



CHAIR FRENCH wondered how renoving "unscheduled” would put
paraneters on the neaning of what schedul ed neans.

MR. IVERSEN replied that the issue wth scheduling versus
unschedul i ng goes to the underlying policy of setting sonme sort
of standard for pro-active naintenance to keep production going.

10: 06: 13 AM

SENATOR THERRI AULT said that taking a turbine down for schedul ed
mai nt enance woul d cause an interruption so he didn't think that
word coul d be del et ed.

CHAI R FRENCH agr eed.

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked what “irresistible” is in the force
maj eure definition of exceptional, inevitable, and irresistible
character.

MR. | VERSEN replied that those terns are al nost redundant and it
means sonet hing that reasonably could not have been prevented -
such as an earthquake.

CHAI R FRENCH sai d he thought sone eager |awer had just started
adding adjectives in there. On natural disasters, though,
clearly a pipeline or a facility ought to be able to withstand a
trenmor, and he asked where one would draw the line between a
trenmor and an eart hquake.

MR. | VERSEN said that gets to the secondary area, which becones
an evidentiary matter. He didn’'t know enough about earthquakes
to draw a line at the point where a trenmor would inevitably rip
apart any pipeline no matter how well constructed. This |anguage
triggers tinmes when the event is unforeseen.

10: 09: 34 AM

CHAIR FRENCH said it's his intention that the facilities should
be built to withstand the terrible weather on the North Sl ope
like 70 nph wi nds and ice storns.

MR. | VERSEN agr eed.

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked what "in privity of contract with" on
i nes 29-30 neans.

MR. | VERSEN said it neans an oilfield contractor, for exanple.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -11- Oct ober 30, 2007



SENATOR THERRI AULT said last year in the Special Conmittee on
Natural Gas that he offered Amendnent 9 and part of the
di scussion on it was not only about the capital costs, but what
happens to operating costs in a shut down. At the tinme it was
estimated that 375,000 barrels/day of production would be |ost.
If there is a shutdown in Prudhoe Bay and half the production
goes away, the fixed costs of $1 million/day don't go away. Part
of it gets attached to every barrel that gets produced. Those
may double on the remaining production. He asked if disallow ng
those costs was discussed. H's anmendnent suggested that there
shoul d be a way of disallow ng them - maybe through regul ati ons.

10:13: 19 AM
MR. | VERSEN said the express topic of cost-per-barrel of capita
expenses wasn't di scussed.

SENATOR THERRI AULT said they woul dn’t be capital costs.

MR. | VERSON said this provision would exclude both capital and
operating expenses. So he thought perhaps additional |anguage
was needed. He said this language is fairly broad in that the
costs are going to be those that are “in response to or
ot herwi se associated with.”

SENATOR THERRI AULT said his interpretation is that this |anguage
does not address those fixed costs.

MR. | VERSEN said the | egislature mght want to clarify that.

10: 15: 30 AM
CHAI R FRENCH asked how this proposal treats well costs.

MR. | VERSEN expl ained that the carve-out for a well is that it
woul d be the costs incurred for repair, replacenment or deferred
mai nt enance of the facility or pipeline structure other than a
well. It is still allowng the costs that would be associated
with wells, recognizing the uncertainty in drilling.

MR. ROCGERS said he would echo that comment. Lots of things that
can't be anticipated can go wong “down-hole” in a well that you
really can’t control or observe as with above surface equi pnent.

10: 16: 56 AM

CHAIR FRENCH noted that AS 43.55.165(e) has a genera
prohibition that |ease expenditures do not include “costs
arising from fraud, wllful m sconduct, gross negligence,
violation of the law, failure to conply with an obligation or a

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -12- Oct ober 30, 2007



| ease permt or license.” If drilling operations get too far
out si de the bounds of normal behavior, there is a cutoff point,

but in general well-drilling costs can be deducted whether
somet hi ng goes wong on the rig floor or down-hole that causes a
problemin “the normal course of drilling operations.”

MR. | VERSEN responded that is correct to the extent other
excl usion provisions would affect wells and the normal course of
busi ness stuff isn't going to be picked up here.

10: 18: 18 AM
CHAI R FRENCH said that admi nistration could offer a rebuttal.

The commttee took an at-ease from 10:18:35 AMto 10: 39: 14 AM

CHAI R FRENCH said the commttee will hear fromthe industry.

10: 39: 37 AM

MARI LYN CROCKETT, Executive Director, Alaska Gl and Gas
Association (AOGA) introduced M. WIllianms who would present
AOCGA’ s testinony.

TOM WLLIAMS, Chair, AOCGA Tax Committee, said the coments he
made yesterday about the repeal of Section AS 43.55.165(c) and
(d) were nade for AOCGA and not as a BP representative.

10: 40: 48 AM
He read the followi ng testinony pertaining to corrosion:

The administration’s proposed paragraph (19) to be
added to AS 43.55.165(e) would, unless a situation is
caused by a “super” force mjeure, disallow any cost
incurred for the repair, replacenent or deferred
mai nt enance undertaken in response to failure, problem
or event the results in an unschedul ed interruption of
or reduction in the oil or gas production or is
undertaken in response to or is otherw se associ ated
with an unpermteed release of hazardous substance of
gas. Not only 1is the Ilanguage of this proposed
revision anmbitious and likely to lead to additional
audit exceptions and disputes, the entire provision is
unnecessary.

The proposed provision states that otherw se ordinary
and necessary, and thus deductible, costs would be
disallowed if the Departnent of Revenue determ nes
such costs were in response to a ‘failure, problem or

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 13- Oct ober 30, 2007



event’ that results in an unschedul ed interruption or
reduction in production. Wiat constitutes a ‘failure,
probl em or event’ and under what standards would any
of those be determ ned? Cost associated wth any
tenporary, unforeseen shutdown or mnor interruptions,
regardl ess how mnor, could now be disallowed by an
auditor even when such an event arises despite
ot herwi se prudent and necessary busi ness operations.

Yet the issue of determning what portion of any
mai nt enance costs should be disallowed, if related to
i nproper naintenance or production interruption, was
t hor oughl y debat ed when t he | egi sl ature was
considering the PPT and again in recent |egislative
sessions. Each tinme amendnents such as the one the
adm nistration is now advocating failed because the
difficulties wth such subjective standards were
i medi ately apparent. The state turned to Dr. Pedro
van Meurs, an international gas consultant retained by
the state, who recommended a flat 30 cent/barrel
exclusion from what would otherwise be a producer’s
capital portion of its |ease expenditures. As Dr. van
Muer s expl ai ned:

It should be noted that in nost oil and gas
fields, assets wll have to be replaced
after the technical |ife of such assets has
expired. Therefore, such replacenents are
reasonabl e |ease expenditures and required
to protect the health and safety of the
workers and to protect then environnent. The
US $0.30 per BTU equivalent barrel is based
on reasonable capital naintenance costs of
fields for which | have (confidential)
i nformation.

Dr. van Meurs further testified that:

Mai ntenance is a reasonable deduction for
PPT, but it is sometines hard to decide
whi ch expendi tures fall into t hat
classification. The sinplest solution is to
take some base expenditure that really wll
be replacenent and over the next 20 - 30
disallow a nodest floor of the capita
expendi t ur es.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -14- Oct ober 30, 2007



MR WLLIAMS said if you assume that production is 250 mllion
barrel s/year, which is a little less than 700,000 barrels/day,
the 30 cents exclusion <cones to $75 nillion (capital
expenditures that collectively the industry would incur on the
Slope) that wll be disallowed from either being deducted or
giving rise to credits. He continued:

At a 25 percent tax rate, that disallowance is $75
mllion and equates to $18.75 nillion. The 20 percent
credit on that $75 mllion equates to another $15
mllion. That’'s over $33 mllion a year of tax
reduction that occurs because of the 30 cents
di sal l owance. Thirty cents doesn’t sound I|ike nuch,
but $33 nillion a year is quite a lot. That's the
point. W believe that over tine that’s, as Dr. van
Meurs believed, that that’'s going to nore than be
adequate for the situations you wll be concerned
about .

So, Dr. van Meurs’ recomendation was adopted and
becanme section 43.55.165(e)(18) of the PPT. The flat
30 cents per barrel exclusion sets a floor for
mai nt enance costs and avoids the problens of case by
case decisions as to whether nmintenance (repair or

repl acenent) IS required because equi pnent or
facilities have been inproperly nmintained or result
in an unscheduled interruption. To adopt t he

admnistration’s proposed anendnent while |eaving the
flat 30 cents per barrel exclusion in the |law would
result in a double disallowance of the sanme costs. The
flat 30 cents exclusion also avoids all questions and
di sput es about which categories of costs were incurred
due to a triggering event and are nondeductible as a
result — and al so di sputes about how nuch was incurred
in each cost category.

Finally the 30 cents per barrel exclusion applies
every year, whether there is a triggering event or
not. Over tinme the 30 cents figure may well prove to
be a reasonably accurate approximation of the average
anount of costs that would be disallowed by auditing
and verifying exactly which cost categories are
di sal | oned under the proposal and how rmuch costs is in
each such category. A flat rate disallowance greatly
furthers t he goal s of clarity, certainty and
efficiency in tax admnistration, enforcenment and

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -15- Oct ober 30, 2007



conpliance. Paragraph (19) in contrast would undercut
each one.

10: 46: 32 AM
SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked what it cost BP to repair the
corrosion on the North Sl ope.

M5. CROCKETT cautioned the conmttee that M. WIllianms was here
on AOGA's behalf, not on BP's. So, it's not appropriate for him
to answer questions relating to his conmpany’s activities.

SENATOR W ELECHOWMSKI said they were trying to figure out if this
is a reasonabl e anmount.

10: 47: 37 AM
MR. WLLIAMS responded that AOGA doesn't have information about
what oil transit line costs are for Prudhoe Bay. He said the

cormittee could get an estimate by renmenbering how many
instances of the type they are concerned with and they already
know that disallowed costs ampbunted to $33 mllion/year. He said
ACGA doesn’t have the information to answer the question.

CHAIR FRENCH said they would not go forward w thout the answer
to the question, because it is relevant to know if the 30 cents

really captures extraordinary events that wll take place wth
respect to production. Those are the things that subsection 19
is trying to address and he said, “Frankly the oil spill on the

North Sl ope a year ago was one of them”

10: 50: 25 AM

MR. WLLIAM recalled that M. Suttle's letter nentioned that BP
had a $13 mllion tax effect. Here they're looking at a 30 cent
exclusion that totals a third of a billion over a 10-year

period. He suggested that they get soneone else to speak for BP

CHAIR FRENCH said it's inmportant to take into account the
unavoi dabl e event that is driving this provision.

10: 52: 51 AM
SENATOR THERRI AULT asked if M. Suttle’'s nunmber was an estimate
of the tax consequences at that tinme or the ultimte tax
consequence.

MR. WLLIAM said that it tal ked about the effects during 2006.

CHAI R FRENCH asked if he had to choose between the |anguage in
SB 80 and in SB 2001, which he woul d choose.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 16- Oct ober 30, 2007



10: 54: 08 AM

M5. CROCKETT replied that AOGA's belief is the 30 cents per
barrel provides the protection they are looking for and the
| anguage in both bills is not necessary.

MR WLLIAVMS said he would have to ask the tax committee what
its preference was.

SENATOR THERRI AULT remarked that all menbers would have to agree
because ACGA is a consensus organi zation

10: 55: 26 AM

MR. | VERSEN agreed that this adds another item to their audit
and that acts of negligence are included in this sort of strict
l[iability provision. He pointed out that there is sone dispute
regarding what this 30 cent provision covers. Senator Wagoner
said it was originally intended to bring the tax closer to a
gross system and statenents have been nade that it’s supposed to
cover regular maintenance.

CHAI R FRENCH asked his view of the 30 cents.

MR. |IVERSEN replied that it seens the discussions originally
began with Senator Wagoner asking Dr. van Meurs about bringing
the system closer to a gross and hitting costs that would be
regul ar mai ntenance. This would be picking up a different sort
of itemthan what either SB 80 or HB 2001 i s addressing.

He discussed the 30-cent per barrel exclusion. It is a per
barrel amount; it isn't an exclusion that’s going towards
negl i gence or unschedul ed interruptions. As production declines,
the 30-cent amount the state gets declines. The real tension is
if it’s declining because of poor naintenance practices, the
state actually gets nore noney taken away because it’s based on
a per barrel anount. The way the calculation actually works is
counter to the concept of covering these itens.

MR. | VERSEN al so pointed out that the 30-cent exclusion applies
to everyone regardless of their behavior. And it’'s based on

their production; it’s not going toward negligence; it's not
going toward inproper nmaintenance; it’s not going towards
unschedul ed shut downs in production. “lIt’s a blanket that hits

everyone in the entire state.”

CHAIR FRENCH said it's alnbst a gross tax floor.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -17- Oct ober 30, 2007



10: 59: 43 AM

MR. | VERSEN agreed. Wth that in mnd, the 30-cent provision
conpared to SB 80 or HB 2001 is not a double disallowance
because they are hitting different things. The 30-cent provision
does not further the policy of pronoting planned mai ntenance and
pl anned shutdowns. Costs associated with deferred nmaintenance

will rise in the future. Under the current regine it's $150
mllion, but if they want to stick with the exclusion (from
capital costs), it could be increased to include operation
expenditures as well or naybe a nore realistic assessnent of
what costs are — and put that 30 cents up to 50 cents. He
clarified that BP is just one of several working owners in that
unit, and its reported $13 mllion tax effect is just a fraction

of the effect on the state.

11: 04: 11 AM
SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if the state knows the cost of the
corrosion repairs.

MR. ROGERS replied it does not.

SENATOR W ELECHOWNSKI asked if he has authority to get that
i nformation.

MR. I VERSEN replied if the departnment has a provision that makes
that a tax effect by statute, he could, at audit. Oherw se he
can’t. Wthout |anguage from SB 80 or SB 2001, the state is on
t hi n ground.

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI asked what the loss to the state was from
t he ot her groups.

MR. ROGERS answered that he could |ook up the working interest
owners’ shares in the unit operating agreenents, and he recalled
that BP owns about 26 percent of Prudhoe Bay.

SENATOR W ELECHOWNSKI asked if the state | ost about $50 million.

MR. |IVERSEN replied yes - for one year. The expenses are
supposed to span the course of two years. So those repairs would
amobunt to about a $130 - $150 mllion tax inpact to the state.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSBKI asked if those costs would be covered if
t he governor's section on this issue was passed.

MR. | VERSEN repli ed:

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 18- Oct ober 30, 2007



To the extent that any of those costs are associated
with a spill...or an unscheduled interruption in
production and there were those as well, then those
woul d be excluded. At sone point we will have to draw
aline as to both in time and scheduling as to how far
t hat goes....

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if the state would be able to capture
nore of the $150 mllion loss if SB 80, which includes a
negl i gence standard, were to be passed.

MR. | VERSEN replied: “Since there has been a plea of crimna
negligence, if there is a negligence standard that we’ re | ooking
at, then I would have to look at the actual plea agreenent to
determ ne exactly what that covers.” One of the things he
westled with is that gross negligence is currently excluded
under statute. But the challenge wth a negligence decision, he
said, is if BP decides to replace the entire pipeline, deciding
what percentage of that replacenent would have been done anyway
and what percentage is actually attributable to negligence. He
opined that the |anguage in Version M is tighter in terns of
precl udi ng an argunent.

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI said the admnistration supported SB 80
| ast year.

11: 11: 42 AM
CHAI R FRENCH asked M. lversen to bring the commttee sonething
nore definitive on the tax consequences of the spill on the

North Sl ope: what they are under current |aw and what they would
be if SB 2001 passed.

VR. | VERSEN said that request brings up a couple of
conplications. The first is that this is under investigation by
the Department of Law (DOL), so he can’t speculate about the
actual danmages. In addition, he doesn’t know what the costs are;
he only has heard what they m ght be.

CHAI R FRENCH asked where the $250 mllion to $300 mllion nunber
cones from

MR. | VERSEN said they were in articles that cane out when the
i nci dent happened.

SENATOR HUGEA NS recalled that $250 million cane out in Resources

along with an inflationary figure of 5 to 10 percent. He thought
BP was the source.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -19- Oct ober 30, 2007



CHAI R FRENCH went back to AS 43.55.165(e) on page 17 of the CS
that says “costs arriving from fraud, wlful msconduct, gross
negligence, violation of the law or failure to conply with an
obligation under a lease.” He said BP's guilty plea is drop-dead
proof that any costs that arose from that violation would not be
deductible. He asked if he was interpreting that too broadly.

MR. | VERSEN replied on its face that would seem to be the case,
but he anticipated an argunment that crimnal negligence isn't
the sort of violation of the |aw that they would be | ooking for.

CHAIR FRENCH responded that his lawerly sense says that he
could argue that the only cost that arose from that violation
was the fine paid, not the pipeline replacenent and perhaps
that's why the | anguage i s needed.

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI pointed out that there's still 74 percent
fromthe other operators who didn't plead negligence.

SENATOR HUGA NS asked M. lversen if this provision is tighter
t han SB 80.

MR. | VERSEN replied yes.

SENATOR HUGGE NS asked him what happens to the nobney that cones
fromthe 30 cents/barrel provision.

MR. | VERSEN said that provision is an express exclusion from
| ease expenditures wunder AS 43.55.165(e). That's the sane
provi sion that sets exclusions for things |ike gross negligence,
fraud, the provision the Senator French nentioned a few m nutes
ago, violations of law or |ease expenditures, and others. It is

30 cents/barrel of capital costs, “so you take your taxable
production ... which would be rate of production less royalty
barrels, multiply that anmount tines 30 cents a barrel, and then
you exclude that cost from allowable |ease expenditures.” It

isn't noney sitting in a fund.

SENATOR HUGGE NS said it is not to be used for nmintenance work,
and it is inmportant to recognize it as a flat tax or revenue.

11:18: 58 AM

CHAI R FRENCH said he read that BP's costs to replace 16 mles of
pi pe in Prudhoe Bay have increased slightly to as much as $260
mllion. So they are in the ball park with respect to cost
estimates or pipeline replacenment on the North Sl ope.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 20- Oct ober 30, 2007



MR. | VERSEN said the state is losing the tine value of noney for
seven years - a substantially larger loss to the state.

The conmm ttee took an at-ease at 11:21:09 AM

11: 22: 01 AM

CHAI R FRENCH said they would discuss the issue of actual versus
reasonabl e, costs and he asked M. Burnett to discuss the pool
the ACES bill envisions.

JERRY BURNETT, Director, Adm nistrative Services, Departnent of
Revenue (DOR), said the original ACES proposal has a provision
for setting up a tax credit paynent fund and that was taken out
in Version M He referred to the chart of tax credit paynents
under the current PPT and under ACES. He said there are three
ways to pay tax credits — one is that a producer who has a tax
liability gets a reduction in his tax bill. Another is if he has
a transferable «credit (soneone who does not have a tax
l[tability) that can be sold to the producer that reduces the
producer’s tax bill. “So it comes right out of the production
tax pool before that production tax goes to the general fund.”

MR. BURNETT said a refundable tax credit (whereby a conmpany with
no tax liability to the State of Al aska under the production tax
but with earned credits under the PPT) could be paid out of the
general fund through an appropriation.

11: 24: 11 AM

MR. BURNETT said rather than having an appropriation to the
operating budget and then paying the refundable tax credits, the
ACES proposal (Section 45 in the original SB 2001) sets up a tax
credit fund where an appropriation is made from the production
tax prior to it going to the general fund in a percentage.

11: 25: 31 AM

MR. BURNETT said producer transferable tax credits are handl ed
exactly the sane as they are under the current PPT. Refundable
tax credits are paid froma tax credit fund that is funded from
the appropriation of a percentage of production tax liability.
It requires an appropriation into the general fund from the
| egi sl ature each year, and then the paynents are made out of the
tax credit fund without further appropriation. This neans that
the balance in the fund can be carried forward; the earnings
fromthe fund stay in the fund and the fund would not be swept
into the CBR (Constitutional Budget Reserve). It’s not avail able

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -21- Oct ober 30, 2007



for appropriation because anobunts in that fund do not require
further appropriation to be spent.

CHAIR FRENCH said it seenmed to be an unusual arrangenent.

MR, BURNETT said it isn't a unique exanple and the education
fund is simlar exanple.

SENATOR THERRI AULT directed attention to page 30.

MR. BURNETT said that was the intent of the fund. He expl ai ned
that a concern with ACES is that tax credits aren't equitable,
and using the tax credit fund ensures that the funds are there
and doesn’t conpete with general fund expenditures. The funding
nmechani smallows the |legislature to know what is going on.

11:31: 44 AM
CHAI R FRENCH r ecogni zed Senate President Lyda G een.

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI asked if he thought this section would cost
$100 million.

MR. BURNETT said it will not cost the taxpayer anything, but the
credits that are in current legislation will cost about $125
mllion and he already has a FY 08 authorization. This section
woul d put about $200 million into the fund if the appropriation
bill also has a | anguage section conformng to it (incorporating
the noney into the fund). Oher provisions in ACES would |ikely
i ncrease the amobunt of credits that needed to be paid from the
fund beyond the $125 million.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked how he negotiates the price for the
credits.

MR. BURNETT replied that when the state is paying refundable tax
credits it is a 100 percent value, but a transferable credit to
a producer is a negotiated value between the holder of the tax
credit certificate and the producer. Testinmony has indicated
that to be in the 90 percent range. The departnent believes that
since producers get 100 percent of the value of their credits,
there is no advantage to the state to not give 100 percent of
the value of a credit to a non-producer who could transfer it to
a producer and the producer would get 100 percent.

11: 34: 27 AM

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -22- Oct ober 30, 2007



CHAI R FRENCH asked hi m how nuch woul d have to be appropriated to
the fund to get it up and running and to explain how it doesn’t
get swept into the CBR

MR. BURNETT started with Section (c), which assigns 10 percent
of the production tax revenue when the price for ANS West Coast
is above $60 into the credit fund. That fund would hold the
money; it wll be invested by the treasury in short term
investnments. Tax credits wll be paid from the fund to the
t axpayer when the division finishes auditing a tax application.

CHAI R FRENCH asked how they arrived at the 10 percent figure.

MR. BURNETT replied that 10 percent was based on an estimte by
t he departnment’s econom st based on what the likely value of tax
credits will be relative to production tax over tinme. This is
just for those who have no current tax liability and snall
anounts of production for that year.

MR. BURNETT estimated that this year the fund paid out $125
mllion and left $75 mllion. He said next year they were hoping
for $250 million in credits because that neans nore investnent
is being done. He said it’s not expected to grow in a linear way
over time; it’s expected to be lunpy. This snoothes the flow of
noney out of the production tax by taking a percentage out each
year and then the fund is able to pay differing anobunts each
year and the rest is carried forward. The legislature could
decide each year to stay with 10 percent or to change it
dependi ng on how rmuch is left in the fund.

11: 38: 50 AM
CHAIR FRENCH asked if this was a guideline rather than a
prescriptive value that wll automatically pop up in an

appropriation bill.

MR. BURNETT replied that he expected the admnistration would
always put that into the appropriation bill and then the
| egi sl ature would discuss it.

SENATOR THERRI AULT said he expected the Finance Conmittee to
wat ch the bal ance. He also pointed out that this |anguage gives
the departnment the authorization to pay for these credits only,
and it wouldn’t have access to any other balance in that fund.
The | egi sl ature does, however. Everyone agreed.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if there would be a market for these
tax credit certificates if the state declined to purchase them

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 23- Oct ober 30, 2007



MR. BURNETT replied that the state doesn’t have an option as to
whether or not to pay the different types of credits unless
there is insufficient nmoney in the fund. Remaining anounts of
the credits that weren’t purchased by the state because of
insufficient funds would be either carried forward or could be
transferred to another taxpayer who had sufficient t ax
liability. There are limtations on how nmuch one could reduce
tax liability through transferable credits, so there could be
ci rcunst ances where it could only be carried forward.

SENATOR THERRI AULT noted that the agency could ask for a general
fund appropriation the next year or ask for them in a
suppl enmental budget to pay credits that were turned in wth
i nsufficient funds.

MR. BURNETT replied yes, but a long period of low oil prices
could lead to insufficient noney in the fund after lots of
credits have been paid out, and the legislature m ght choose to
not spend the noney on credits.

SENATOR THERRI AULT followed wup on Senator Welechowski’s
guestion and said even though there is a private sector market
mechani sm paynment of these credits ultinmately always cones back
to the state treasury.

MR. BURNETT said yes.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if the state pays interest to the
credit holder if it doesn't turn inits credits for a few years.

MR. BURNETT replied no; it is unlike a tax refund. Tax credits
are not ones that earn interest. They are paid when there is a
sufficient bal ance.

11:44: 09 AM
CHAI R FRENCH asked how this would work and if the fund would
fill up during FY' 08 through an appropriation.

MR. BURNETT replied that the state has outstanding credits, so
it would make sense to request a supplenental appropriation to
capitalize the fund in 2008 — especially since the revenues in
2008 shoul d be sufficient.

CHAIR FRENCH asked if it is the admnistration’s plan to both
capitalize the fund and spend it in the same year.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 24- Oct ober 30, 2007



MR. BURNETT replied yes, but the fund would have ongoing
capitalization and would fluctuate fromyear to year.

CHAIR FRENCH said it’'s not a slush fund.

MR. BURNETT agreed and added that a slush fund would have no
value to the department or the admnistration; it's just to
cushion swings in incone from year to year and to have
sufficient funds to pay the credits each year.

11:47: 01 AM
CHAI R FRENCH asked how rapidly declining oil prices would affect
t he fund.

MR. BURNETT replied that l|anguage in the bill requires the
departnment to wite regulations that determine how it pays
credits in a tine when there is an insufficient balance in the
fund. It could be a case where explorers are spending a great
deal of capital and so lots of nobney isn't going into the fund.
He said the departnment is thinking of pro-rating the credits
between the various tax certificate holders and allow them to
carry them forward into the next year. It could be that the
| egislature will need to nake a decision at some point.

CHAI R FRENCH asked by how much FY' 07 estinmates were off.

MR. BURNETT replied that the departnent asked for around $25
mllion in the supplenental budget and it ended up payi ng about
$59 mllion in credits. Some credits have been paid out in
FY' 08, but not to the $25 million limt. He expected that nopst
of the credits would cone after the winter season and with the
tax returns at the end of the year. Tax returns cone in in Apri
and they have 60 days to audit the credit application.

MR. ROGERS clarified that under this proposal that is extended
to 120 days.

11:52: 34 AM

CHAIR FRENCH referred to SB 80 corrosion elenents inside the
bill before them [CSSB 2001(RES), version M and noted the neno
from M. Bullock to Senator Wgoner, dated February 26, 2007,
relating to retroactivity. M. Bullock opined that it would not
violate ex post facto laws and it would be legal to |ook back
that far.

The comm ttee recessed from 11:53:53 AMuntil 1:31:32 PM

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 25- Oct ober 30, 2007



CHAI R FRENCH cal l ed the neeting back to order. He said that Dr.
Scott would address transportation deductions and that he had
copies of the current |aw for the commttee nenbers.

ANTONY SCOTT, Conmercial Analyst, Dywvision of QI and Gas,
Departnent of Natural Resources (DNR), said AS 43.55.150 is
about transportation deductions which are wused to determ ne
gross value at the point of production. He said he would review
the current law, sonme of its problens and sone potential
remedies for determning transportation deductions for tax
purposes. He explained that gross value at the point of
production is determned by subtracting reasonable costs of
transportation from nmarket prices. The statute says reasonable
costs are determned to be different from actual costs by
neeting three conditions.

CHAIR FRENCH asked if this calculation applies to both royalty
oil and PPT paynents.

MR. SCOIT said he is only talking about PPT paynents, not how
transportation tariffs are set for rate-nmaking purposes, and he
isn’t suggesting the state can do anythi ng about what a pipeline
actually charges. He was speaking to what the |egislature wants
to determne is the appropriate transportation deduction for tax
purposes. This is not about royalty deductions, which are
determ ned by contract, either.

MR. SCOIT said under the current PPT, reasonable costs are
deened to be the actual costs unless three sinmultaneous
conditions hold. The last condition, the oil/gas transportation
method, is not reasonable in view of existing alternative
nmet hods of transportation and will never be obtained. The only
reasonabl e nmethod of transportation of gas or oil off the North
Sl ope, for exanple, is always going to be by pipeline - unless
the sea ice nelts. So the third condition, which would provide
an exception to reasonable costs being actual costs, is never
going to be obtained - they will always be actual costs.

1:36: 50 PM
CHAI R FRENCH asked why that matters.

MR, SCOTT replied that the first condition (which would suggest
that maybe reasonable costs shouldn’'t be actual costs) is when
the parties to the transportation of oil and gas are affiliated.
It’s possible that the price paid doesn't indicate appropriate
costs. Affiliate |anguage exists elsewhere for determning
appropriate |ease expenditures. For instance, the production

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 26- Oct ober 30, 2007



wing of an integrated oil <conpany will pay a rate to the
transportation subsidiary of the sane integrated conpany. But
because it's affiliated, it may not be reasonable. He surm sed
that when the statute was initially drafted, people probably
t hought the DOR should be able to take a closer |ook. The second
condition is simlar: If the contract for transportation of oil
or gas is not an arns-length transaction or is not
representative of market value of that transportation.

1:39: 03 PM

CHAIR FRENCH said the first tw conditions cause a person’ s
eyebrows to be raised that the correct rate is not being charged
and that they need to | ook deeper.

MR. SCOIT agr eed.

SENATOR HUGGE NS said he believed that an arnms-length transaction
is a basic requirenent for transportation for the affiliates.

MR. SCOTT responded with an exanpl e supposi ng that BPXA owns 100
percent the North Star field, BPTA owns the North Star oil
pi peline, and they transport 100 percent of BPXA' s oil. Although
they are separate conpanies, they are clearly affiliates. One
could at least argue that it is not a fully arns-length
transaction — although legally they are two separate entities
and the parties nomnating oil on the pipeline will be separate
people from the parties receiving those nom nations. He added
that the pipeline has rules to insure that the pipeline
per sonnel from BPTA do not provide privileged information to the
shi ppers in BPXA

SENATOR HUGGE NS said he operates under the assunption that an
arms-length transaction is one of the requirements for the
transportation.

MR. SCOIT said that gets into the issue of what arnms length is.

1: 41: 29 PM
CHAIR FRENCH doubts it’s possible to have arns-length
transacti ons between affili ates.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked where the potential for conflict
between the state and producers is on this issue. Is there a
concern that actual costs are not what reasonable costs should
be? Is the concern that when they set their tariff they don't
get taxed on that tariff? Is there a concern from anyone’s

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -27- Oct ober 30, 2007



perspective that when the tax is raised, the producers can raise
their tariff?

MR. SCOIT responded that the concern is if one affiliate is
charging a rate to another affiliate of the sanme conpany. At the
parent |evel, the conpany doesn’t care about the rate, because
it is mving the noney from the |eft hand pocket to the right.
But there is a substantial tax consequence, because the
transportation deducti on IS a t ax deducti on. | f t he
transportation tariff is $1 too high (above reasonable cost)
under PPT, the state receives 22.5 cents |less on each barrel of
oil that is subject to tax.

1:44:. 34 PM

MR. SCOIT said in practice, the first tw parts of AS
43.55.150(a) go to circunstances that mght raise sone eyebrows
about actual costs being reasonable. He advised:

It mght be worth taking a second |ook, but right now
in the statute it’s not just that you have to be an
affiliate or have an arns-length transaction, it is
also the case that reasonable costs and actual costs
cannot be different unless there is an alternative
node of transportation — and practically speaking,
that’ s never the case.

MR. SCOIT said that right now this statute mght renotely apply
to sonme circunstances in Cook Inlet, but he couldn’t imagine it.

SENATOR THERRI AULT specul ated that other basins where perhaps
the oil could be trucked wouldn’t trigger the state to inpose a
reasonabl e rate because one or two wouldn't be satisfied.

1:47:11 PM

MR. SCOIT said that is correct. He supposed a case where a
producer has chosen to truck the oil to market and there is nore
than one trucking conpany, but the producer does a sweetheart
deal with one. If it is not an affiliate transaction and even
t hough the one would charge less, the state would be required to
pay the other rate. The state woul d have no recourse.

1:48: 09 PM

SENATOR HUGGE NS rem nded them that they would have to discuss
the treatnment of different geographical areas based on the
di fferent variabl es of devel oping.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 28- Oct ober 30, 2007



SENATOR THERRI AULT said now they are focused on the North Slope
with its devel oped transportati on system But the state hopes to
find resources in other areas, and the commttee should nake
sure this statute, which applies statew de, works statew de.

MR. SCOIT said transportation deductions on oil pipelines in the
state have historically been determ ned by rates that have been
sanctioned by regulatory bodies — the Regulatory Commi ssion of
Al aska (RCA) or the Federal Energy Regul atory Comm ssion (FERC).
Hi storically this has been the basis for saying that’s the
transportati on deducti on.

1:49: 35 PM
CHAI R FRENCH asked how far the transportation elenent is neant
to carry.

MR. SCOIT replied that transportation can begin downstream of
the point of production. Upstream of the point of production,
which is defined for tax deduction purposes in AS 43.55.920, is
not consi dered transportation. Downstream is consi dered
transportation. Myving oil on TAPS is transportation. Prudhoe
Bay has oil transit lines that are not transportation; they are
field lines that are considered to be upstream of the point of
production because the oil is not netered yet for custody
transfer. In Prudhoe Bay, transportation begins downstream of
Punp Station 1.

CHAI R FRENCH asked if that is really the inlet valve to punp 1.

MR. SCOIT replied yes - it is netered where the producer
transfers custody at a flange to TAPS. He said the Alpine unit
has a simlar story in that the custody transfer happens to the
Al pine pipeline, which is owed by a separate transportation
conpany. At that point, transportation begins. Upstream of that
any of the flow lines within Alpine are not transportation for
tax purposes. Those are |ease expenditures (for tax purposes).
“So that custody transfer nmeter marks the distinction between
whether you're upstream of the point of production or
downstream and if you' re downstream it can be transportation.”

1:52: 36 PM

CHAIR FRENCH said this came up yesterday, and he said that
Kuparuk is nore like the Al pine scenario. Prudhoe Bay has feeder
lines that go into punp 1.

MR. SCOIT agreed and said North Star is the sane thing.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 29- Oct ober 30, 2007



CHAI R FRENCH asked how far downstream transportati on goes.

MR. SCOTT replied that it goes to market. He added that the
Department of Natural Resources (DNR) and Departnent of Revenue
(DOR), separately, have spent an enornous anount of tine
figuring out the reasonable cost of transportation for tankers.

SENATOR HUGE NS asked how nuch maritinme costs are.

1:54: 08 PM

MR. SCOIT replied that those change for different conpanies and
he didnt want to venture a figure. There are differences
bet ween the tanker transportation deduction for royalty and for
tax, but it’'s in the range of $1.50 to $2.00. DOR publishes what
the marine transport deduction is to the Wst Coast for incone
t ax purposes.

SENATOR THERRI AULT said that was discussed |ast year. Exxon was
the highest and the state is trying to cone to an agreenent with
them on what fee should be paid - as a contractual dispute.

MR. SCOIT said he would be happy to get those figures. He went
on to explain that historically the transportation deduction for
tax purposes has relied on rates that have been sanctioned by

the regulatory bodies; however, it has not resulted from a
regul atory determnation. This is an inportant distinction. |If
you have a rate which is approved by a regulatory body, in

general those agencies have a requirenent to establish rates
that are just and reasonable. Historically, and it’s usually the
case within the state, the producers through their affiliates
own transportation. Typically you see a very close match between
ownership percentages in the pipelines and ownership percentages
of the production which conmes out of the fields.

He said because these integrated conpanies are paying thensel ves
— nmoving noney from one pocket to the other — they would prefer
a high rate. Because the higher the rate, the lower their tax
paynents will end up being and the lower the royalty paynents
wi | be. So the only party usually conplaining about
transportation deductions has been the state. A dispute wll
occur and rate litigation wll ensue. Wthout exception the
state has wultimtely cone up with settlenent agreenents for
those pipeline tariffs. The regulatory agencies have never said
that the rates produced by the settlenent agreenents are just
and reasonable rates. Just and reasonable is a term of art in
the regulatory arena, which means historically cost-based rates

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 30- Oct ober 30, 2007



- rates which reflect actual costs of devel oping and operating a
pi peline including reasonable return on capital.

1:58: 59 PM

CHAI R FRENCH asked why the state has not pursued this claimto
the very end. Wiy has it relied on settlenent agreenents when it
woul d have gotten a better result by forcing the regulatory
agency to cone to a decision on what actual costs are?

MR. SCOIT replied that TAPS is the really big deal, and when
those tariffs were being litigated from 1977 through 1985 (when
the state finally settled), there was significant uncertainty
around net hodol ogy issues for pipeline rate nmaking. This applied
to pipelines in the Lower 48 as well. It was against that
context of regulatory wuncertainty that the state nade the
determnation that it had no confort in getting to a final
conclusion any tine soon. Another ten years was the prediction
at the time of the settlenent.

He said the determ nation was made that the state was better off
settling, because it mght have a potential refund obligation
that was continually accruing. It neasured in billions of
dollars. There are a nunber of reasons why it seened reasonabl e
at the time for the state to settle the TAPS dispute when and
how it did.

2:01: 29 PM

MR. SCOIT said his Master’s thesis was on this question, and he
never opined whether it was good for the state or not. Many
people think that the state nmade a m stake and others think it
was the right thing to do. Having settled TAPS, he said it could
be argued that the state got used to not wanting to litigate any
nore and it now has a framework for subsequent settlenents and
has |ong-term settlenment agreenments. He assured them that those
settlement agreenents did not say that for tax purposes the
state would use the tariff nunbers that canme out of those
settlement agreenents. Those settlenent agreenents said the
fol | ow ng:

Here is a methodology. It'Il determne a rate. So |ong
as the rate each year that the transportati on conpany
files is at or below that rate, the state will not

protest the rate. That’'s what the agreenents say. It
doesn’t say we’'re going to use them for tax purposes
or royalty purposes or any other purpose for that
matter. ..

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 31- Oct ober 30, 2007



Now, on the royalty side, we have a nunber of royalty
settl ement agreenents, which make reference to various
transportation rates, but again, for tax purposes -
and so we’'re bound to the extent that our contracts
bind us. But for tax purposes, when comng up wth
appropriate transportation deductions, you are not
simlarly bound — just |like you' re not bound on issues
relating to corrosion.... You re the policy nmakers;
you get to decide what’'s an appropriate course of
action for deductions.

2:04:19 PM
SENATOR W ELECHOWNSKI asked if the state has |ost noney because
of the way the rates are set.

MR. SCOIT replied that the RCA was host to intrastate rate
litigation concerning rates for 1977 through 2000 brought by
Tesoro, an instate refiner. Tesoro thought the rates were too
hi gh. Eventually the RCA *“disgorged” a 200-page decision that
found that through 1996, TAPS tariffs had collected $9.9 billion
too much from shippers. A very large percentage of that $9.9

billion was collected from Exxon Production Conpany to Exxon
Transportation Conpany, but given the state’'s royalty and tax
interests, the state footed roughly 25 percent of the bill - or
$2.5 billion.

SENATOR HUGA NS asked who paid the remaining $7.7 billion

MR. SCOIT replied that the remai nder of the settlenment would be
mai nly transfer paynents from affiliates of the pipeline. In
ot her words BPXA paid BPTA too nuch. “But since they were paying
t henselves, it’s neither here nor there.”

CHAIR FRENCH commented, “W don’t care except that it reduces
our royalty and taxes.”

2:07:17 PM

MR. SCOIT repeated that the vast majority of the remainder of
the $7.7 billion was paid by affiliates of the pipeline to
itself. There were sonme independent shippers, but very few.

CHAI R FRENCH r ecogni zed Senat or Thomas and Representative Buch.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if the state can recoup that $2
billion based on that RCA deci sion.

MR. SCOIT replied no.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 32- Oct ober 30, 2007



SENATOR THERRI AULT said that four years were being disputed and
the FERC decision potentially goes back two or three years. The
potential inpact to the state treasury if the RCA rate is upheld
is $800 mllion.

2:08: 34 PM

MR. SCOTT said he would talk about tax inpacts shortly. He
explained that in 2005, rate litigation at the FERC commenced
wi th Anadarko and Tesoro as parties. The state was also a party,
but its conplaint had to do with discrimnation because the
intrastate rates were so rmuch lower than the interstate rates.
Last May, an admnistrative |law judge for the FERC determ ned
that indeed the interstate rates set pursuant to the TAPS
settlement nethodology with the state were nmuch too high and
suggested that the just and reasonable rate (for transportation
on TAPS) should be about $2.00 rather than $5.00. That nmatter
was appealed to the FERC as a whole, but he could guarantee
that, no matter what the result, the FERC s decision wll be
appealed in the D.C. GCrcuit Court.

SENATOR W ELECHOABKI said |losing this tax makes himangry.

MR SCOIT said the $2.2 billion figure from the RCA s decision
is fromthe period of 1977 through 1996.

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI asked if the state could do a statute of
limtations retroactively to recoup that |oss.

2:10: 53 PM
MR SCOIT said he couldn’t answer that.

SENATOR W ELECHOAEKI remar ked that was |ike stealing.

SENATOR THERRI AULT rem nded them that it was only in 2005 that
the state started protesting, and the opportunity to protest
previ ous years is |ost.

MR. SCOIT said that is correct. In essentially all cases, until
recently, regulatory bodies have blessed settlenent agreenents
that the state has struck with industry rather than having a
fully-litigated rate case that eventually came to conclusion.
That raises some issues about whether actual costs are
reasonabl e, and evidence exists that they are unreasonable -
gi ven recent regulatory determ nations of actual costs.

CHAI R FRENCH recogni zed the presence of Senator Hoffman.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 33- Oct ober 30, 2007



2:12:19 PM

MR. SCOIT said the first question he wanted to raise is why the
state bases its tax policy for pi peline transportation
deductions on pipeline rate litigation. For royalty, it 1is
pretty nmuch stuck doing so, but for taxation, it is not. Tax for
transportation deductions is a sovereign matter. The right
answer could be zero, he remarked, and added that this is not an
unheard of neasure. It’s the legislature s call.

MR SCOTT further el aborat ed:

On pipelines transporting federal royalty, if the
pipeline is an affiliate of the producer, MV
(M neral s Managenent Service) doesn’t take the tariff
rate as the basis for determning the transportation
deduction, in general. MV5 is the federal equivalent
of DNR for the state. So, under their |eases, M5,
says, ‘W wll give you an actual and reasonabl e cost,
but we’'re not going to look to the regulatory agency
to determne actual and reasonable costs for
transportation if you don’t have a properly contested
rate proceeding.” So, if this is not an arns-length
transaction, what we do is we’'ll say, ‘Here is a
met hod, here’'s what you'll use. This is the formula

crank it through the formula. The rate that cones out
[is] your transportation deduction.’ It is not
dissimlar, frankly, from what DOR - it's actually a
little nmore formal. No, | shouldn’t say that. It’s not
di ssim | ar from what DOR does for mar i ne
transportation deductions...

There are sone reasons for the state to avoid relying
on the reqgqulatory process in setting tax value. First
of all, as we ve just been talking about, pipeline
litigation can drag on for a considerable period of
time and in the nmeantine you’ re accruing bal ances that
may show up as refunds to the state treasury and may
not, but you're <creating uncertainty as to the
ultimate tax value when you rely on litigation for
determ ning tax val ue.

2:15: 28 PM

CHAIR FRENCH said his sense is that the regulatory process and
the litigation that is used fromthat takes much |onger than the
litigation process that ensues when you have a tax dispute.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 34- Oct ober 30, 2007



MR. SCOTT said that can be the case. In a nenb to DNR, Spencer
Hosie said he could resolve tax disputes in two or three years.
M. Scott said he hoped the first stage of the rate litigation
at the FERC will be concluded within three years, but then it
will go to the D.C GCrcuit Court; nore than likely a small
portion of it will be remanded back to the FERC. It is a process
that can take considerably longer than three years. He said the
original Tesoro protest with the RCA was in 1997 and that was
not concluded until 2005. That decision is still not final and
is before the Al aska Supreme Court right now.

SENATOR THERRI AULT said it took RCA five years, but it is
evaluating a nethodology and doing all the work. Then the
challenge in the <court system determnes whether it was
reasonable and not arbitrary. So there is sonme deference to the
agency’ s expertise. One would expect the agency function to be
t he | ongest.

MR. SCOTT agreed and said the second reason to question using
the regulatory process to set tax value is that absent arns-
l ength transactions with commercially sophisticated parties like
Tesoro was at the RCA or |ike Anadarko and Tesoro were at the
FERC. Absent that kind of a protest, it is at |east questionable
whet her you're going to get settlenent results that are a good
match to actual costs or reasonabl e costs.

2:18: 25 PM

MR. SCOIT gave an exanple. Right now the TAPS transportation
deduction is about $5.00. TAPS is one hose with separate straws
within it and each one has a different tariff and those bounce
around from year to year. The RCA determned that costs were
actually around $1.97. The FERC |aw judge determ ned they were
about $2.05. Wiile the litigation continues, the state continues
to allow $5.00 for a transportation deduction for tax purposes.
If it is the case that TAPS deductions are $3.00 too high and
assum ng production is 760,000 barrels per day and production

tax rate is 22.5 percent, it would cost the state about $160
mllion per year.
2:21:12 PM

MR. SCOIT said he wanted to shift focus to talk about
transportation deductions for gas ©pipelines. He said gas
pipelines are typically built on the basis of negotiated rates
bet ween shi ppers and pipelines, and there is no scrutiny by FERC
as to whether it is a fair bargain. In the case of a mgjor North
Slope gas pipeline, if the producers end up owning the gas
pi peline, they can negotiate with thenselves. That could result

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 35- Oct ober 30, 2007



in a very high negotiated rate because they could use that rate
for determining their deduction for determ ning gross value at
the point of production for gas. Gven the current statute, the
state wouldn’'t even have a regulatory forum really to go to,
practically speaking, to conplain about this excessive, non-
arnms-l ength negotiated rate. The FERC doesn’t care.

So, why would the state want to set its tax policy for
transportati on deductions on the basis of a non-arns-length deal
that the state can’'t even litigate before a regulatory body? The
state’s experience with TAPS suggests that would be unw se and
there is no need to do so. He said this is an opportunity for
the state to reconsider how transportation deductions are
handl ed for determ ning gross value at the point of production.

2:23: 56 PM
MR. SCOIT said the state presently nust live wth it because
it’s never the case that there will be other reasonabl e npdes of

transportation — so the third condition in AS 43.55.150(a) wll
never be nmet. The DOR could follow MW s |ead and establish
regul ations given a statutory change to determ ne appropriate
cost deductions for non-arnms-length transactions. But the state
will need to be careful to deal with the circunstance that
Anadarko faces, for exanple. Anadarko really does pay TAPS
tariffs; it doesn't own a part of the pipeline. A non-TAPS owner
that is not an affiliate may want to use their actual costs.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked the inpact of exploration on the
North Sl ope when tariffs are so nmuch hi gher than they should be.

MR. SCOIT said it is not helpful. There have been a nunber of
presentations on how the tax rate affects the break-even point.
Those novenents based on tax may be well under that $3.00 sw ng.
It is a substantial difference.

2:26: 36 PM
SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI asked if tariffs were down to $2.00 would
t hat encourage exploration on the North Sl ope.

MR. SCOIT said the short answer is no, and:

the reason is because the state cannot, through its
tax policy, determine what a pipeline actually
charges; so a third party shipper right now faces TAPS
tariffs which are arguably too high. They have to pay
that tariff if they want to get their product off the
North Slope. Wat you choose as an appropriate

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 36- Oct ober 30, 2007



transportation deduction for tax purposes can't
directly affect what the pipeline charges that third
party. Wiat you can do, and what you clearly have the
power to do, is affect whether that transportation
deduction affects the state’s general fund. So,
through tax policy you can't directly change the rate.
Through tax policy you <can directly affect the
transportation deducti on.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if the pipeline owners have to get
FERC approval on rates or if they charge whatever they want.

MR. SCOIT replied that owners of a pipeline will have to have a
tariff on file wth the FERC, for exanple. Absent soneone
conpl aining about that tariff, it will be allowed to go into

effect. Protesting tariffs is an extrenely |engthy and expensive
process; it’s not sonmething that a conpany undertakes Ilightly.
It would have to have enough production to be worth their while
on a cost benefit basis. Wen Anadarko and Tesoro decided to
chal l enge TAPS tariffs at the FERC, they needed approval for the
| egal expenditures that were going to be entailed because they
measured in many mllions of dollars. Small, new entrants wll
not be inclined to do that.

2:29:17 PM
CHAI R FRENCH went back to the Anadarko case and asked why it
woul dn’t deduct the actual costs, since they are not affiliated.

MR. SCOTT replied that changing “and” to “or” will get the state
nost of the way, if not all of the way, to where it needs to go.
It won't capture Anadarko, but they want to make sure that when
DOR promul gated regul ations (after changing “and” to “or”) for
setting appropriate transportation deductions that it applies to
everyone whether they are affiliated or not. It’s probably not
necessary to do it in statute.

2:31: 06 PM
SENATOR THERRI AULT said the actual cost wll be a legitimte
deduction for Anadarko or any other non- TAPS owner.

MR. SCOTT said that is right. TAPS is the poster child, but this
change could potentially apply to the other pipelines and it
makes a difference. One needs to |ook on a case-by-case basis.
It is really about transportation deduction policy.

The conmmittee took a recess from2:33:05 PMto 2:52:53 PM

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 37- Oct ober 30, 2007



CHAI R FRENCH cal |l ed the nmeeting back to order and said that they
woul d hear a response to the previous testinony from M. Scott
about actual versus reasonable costs from ACGA.

MARI LYN CROCKET, AOGA, said she is not planning to respond to
the previous testinony. She has testinony on actual versus
reasonabl e cost and the credit buy back.

CHAI R FRENCH asked to start with the nbost recent topic.

2:54: 07 PM

TOM WLLIAMS, Chairman, AOGA Tax Conmittee, said the issue of
actual versus reasonable costs is real and was faced by the DOR
when he was director of the Petroleum Revenue Division of DOR
(which is now the Tax Division) from 1975 to 1979 and al so when
he was DOR commi ssioner from 1979 to 1982. Back then the sane
issue arose in other contexts. In the context of the cost to
transport ANS crude by marine tankers from Valdez to markets on
the West Coast, Hawaii, St. Croix in the Virgin Islands and to
the U S East and Qulf Coast s, the respective nmarine
transportation costs had to be netted out or subtracted fromthe
market value of the ANS delivered at each outside nmarket
destination in order to determne the corresponding netback
value of that oil at Valdez. From the Valdez netback the
pi peline transportation costs were further netted out to get the
corresponding netback in the field (which was fornmally called
the gross value at the point of production in production tax
statutes starting in md-1977).

MR. WLLIAMS said, from a tax administrator’s perspective, the
advant age of using reasonable costs instead of actual costs is
that you don’t have to audit reasonable costs. You just find a
publication or other recognized authority that tells you what
t he reasonabl e costs are and the current market conditions.

For international marine transportation there was actually such
a publication or authority. He said the average freight rate
assessnment (AFRA) was published by the London Tanker Brokers
Panel. Those rates were helpful to DOR to find the delivered
cost to acquire conparable foreign crude at a market destination
where ANS was also going and conpeting against that foreign
supply, but AFRA didn't give them the reasonable cost or market
val ue of waterborne transportation in Jones Act ships. Wen he
first heard about a new U S AFRA in 1978 he was inclined to
consider wusing it to determne the reasonable costs for Jones
Act tanker transportation from Valdez to the other U 'S. ports
where ANS was shipped — he was very inclined until he discovered

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 38- Oct ober 30, 2007



that the tanker fleet for ANS would dom nate the rates quoted
for this US. AFRA 1In other words, those quotes would basically
be the same information he would be getting — it would be just
anot her source. This illustrates one of the problens of using
reasonable rates — which is finding an authoritative source you
can trust. Oten tines there sinply isn't one and sonetines they
go out of business or becone unreliable and inaccurate. The only
other way to inplenent the reasonable cost approach is to audit
the cost of everyone invol ved.

2:58: 07 PM

MR WLLIAMS said this is the worst of all possible worlds from
a tax administrator’s perspective because you have to do all the
auditing and other work in an actual cost system and once that
is done there are the further challenges of proving to everyone
that your reasonable cost figures are accurate and represent
mar ket conditions. Gven the constraints of tax confidentiality,
he asked how cost information could be used from one taxpayer to
show any other taxpayer how reasonable cost was determ ned. The
i ssue of how one taxpayer’s information could be used to show
anot her taxpayer was solved in the statute enacted | ast year.

MR. WLLIAMS said reasonable cost figures will be badly out of
date given that taxpayer information from which the departnment’s
figures are derived would have to be audited first to insure
reliability. There would be a tax that no taxpayer could conply
with correctly when due. It would require nunerous filings and
refilings of amended returns by tax payers as reasonable cost
data was published or updated on the basis of new audit results,
or it wuld be a tax whose correct anount cannot be determ ned
at all until taxpayers are audited. The challenge for DOR to set
up and nmmintain accurate records of each taxpayer’s paynent,
corrections, and final cost figures would be enornous, but
relying on audits is the only way to determne the correct
anount of reasonable costs, and that would anpbunt to taxation by
audit instead of self reporting and self assessnment. It would be
difficult and inefficient to admnister a tax that supposedly is
self reported and self assessed. He conti nued:

Rat her t han t aki ng any of t hese unappeal i ng
alternatives, we (DOR) opted in 1979 and 1980 to use
actual transportation costs as nuch as we could and
save ourselves these troubles. From a taxpayer’s point
of view - and | am now putting ny hat back on as chair
of the AOCGA Tax Commttee - the reasonable cost
approach suffers from three major problens. First,
t axpayers only know their own business and their own

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 39- Oct ober 30, 2007



actual costs. Anything different from a taxpayer’s own
actual costs cannot be right in its eyes, because the
actual costs are what they are and the facts cannot be
different from what they are. It is a rare tax,
i ndeed, that does not |ook at the actual performance
or results of a taxpayer’s business or business
related activities.

3:00: 45 PM
And as long as the tax is taking such later itens into
account, it is fundanmentally unsound to ignore actua

costs or simlar actual results, and to base the tax
instead on sone different cost or result no matter how
reasonable this derivation may be. Second, unless
there is sonme reliable and authoritative source about
reasonabl e costs under the current conditions that is
avai lable to taxpayers before their tax returns and
paynents becone due, it will be inpossible for themto
conpute, report, and pay the correct anobunt of tax on
that due date. In the case of operating and capita

costs to explore for, develop, or produce oil or gas
on the North Slope, there is no reliable authoritative
source available at all, rmuch |less one that can be
available on a tinely basis. Here you can see we
m sunder st ood where the concerns seem to be of the
cormittee on this subject. W were addressing the
i ssue of the upstream costs in the field rather than
downstream costs of the transportation

Third, if DOR would be determning the anount of
reasonable costs to explore for, develop, or produce

oil and gas on the North Slope on the basis of
t axpayers’ verified and audited actual costs for these
activities, it would still be inpossible for taxpayers
to report and pay the correct anmpunt of tax when it
comes due. In addition, the problens of filing and
refiling anended tax returns or of having the
alternative taxation by audit wll be about as

difficult and onerous for taxpayers as they would be
for tax admi nistrators

It is also worth renenbering that to the extent the

actual |ease expenditures can be based on joint
i nt erest billings by t he oper at or to ot her
participants in the operations, the total actual costs
under those billings wll be the sanme for each

participant with the only difference being the size of

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 40- Oct ober 30, 2007



each one’s share of that total. Even if DOR were not
to rely on the audits by non operating participants of

the billings to ensure that those billings are
appropriate and accurate, it would have to do only one
audit of each set of billings by the operator. This is

the same set for all the partners. And that would be,
instead then of doing conpletely independent audits
for each participant’s actual costs. So, using actua
costs could prove to be significantly |ess burdensone
for DOR to admnister, audit, and enforce than one
m ght first expect.

3:03: 14 PM
SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if his testinony represents a
consensus view within ACGA incl udi ng Anadar ko.

MR. WLLIAM replied yes. “There was no dissent.”

SENATOR THERRI AULT said M. WIllianms indicated his testinony was
not in response to the previous discussion, but rather in
response to the upstreamin-field reasonabl e cost discussion.

MR. WLLIAMS said yes, but the anecdotal discussion about AOCGA's
experience with tanker rates fits into the discussion.

CHAI R FRENCH asked if AOGA takes a position on the proposal wth
respect to AS 43.55.150, to change the final “"and” to an “or”,
he would give him further opportunity to speak before the bill
| eaves conmittee.

3:05:13 PM
SENATOR THERRI AULT asked if the gathering lines on the North
Sl ope are regul ated or just negoti ated.

MR WLLIAMS replied that the pipelines in the fields, whether
they are oil transit lines or not, upstream of the custody
transfer meter are not regulated and have not been deducted in
getting to the gross value at the point of production. That
poi nt of production is downstream

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked if the discussion for transportation
costs for tax purposes is only for the downstream stuff.

MR. WLLIAMS said yes. The transportation costs start at the

custody transfer neter where it |eaves the unit and goes into
t he custody of the conmon carrier pipeline serving that field.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -41- Oct ober 30, 2007



CHAI R FRENCH asked if AOGA had an opinion on a tax credit fund.

3:06: 18 PM

MR. WLLIAMS replied that AOGA supports the concept of the state
buying back tax credit certificates and creating the fund to do
so. Further he said.

However, for this systemto work it will be essentia
that future |legislatures appropriate the necessary
nmoney into the fund each year. O herwise the fund wll
turn into an enpty promse for future investors. In as
much as the topic currently under consideration
i ncl udes appropriation authority for credit buy backs,
ACGA would draw your attention to a few potential
issues relating to this portion of the topic.

First, mght the automatic inclusion of earnings on
the fund as part of the fund wthout specific
appropriations of those earnings back into the fund
each year violate Alaska s constitutional prohibition
agai nst dedicated revenues? If so, what mght the
legal effect be of AS 43.55.028(h) stating that
‘“Nothing in this section creates a dedi cated fund?

Wth respect to that question, if | may depart from
the testinony, | think that since this fund is an
account in the general fund, this issue of dedication
m ght be noot — as | understand it, because it is not

an independent thing like the University of Alaska or
something like that. But if that’s the case and the
earnings sort of automatically are there and there
isn’t an appropriation, then could they be taken out
of the treasury without violating the clause in the
constitution requiring an appropriation to take noney
out of the treasury? The fact that this statute says
that they are automatically in the fund bal ance m ght
not be sel f executing because it's not an
appropriation; so you wuld have to take care in the
future to make sure that in addition to appropriating
the new tax receipts, the percentage of the tax each
year, that you would also be appropriating the
interest. There mght be an issue otherw se about the
use of t hat noney that m ght not have been
appropriated and that violates Article 9, Section 13 -
or it mght. | can't give you the legal opinion on
that. Qur concern is that it mght.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -42- Oct ober 30, 2007



3:09: 07 PM

The second question, which is now — mght the anti-
| apse provisions in AS 43.55.028(f), which states that
nmoney in the fund at the end of a fiscal year does not
|apse and remains available for expenditure in
successive fiscal vyears, which includes the nonies
appropriated to it, does that nore properly belong in
a bill making an appropriation to the fund or a bil
specifically reappropriating the noney back into the
fund, rather than in this legislation establishing the
fund in the first place. If so, would AS 43.55.028(f)
violate the constitution’s one-subject rule for

| egislation? There it says: ‘Every bill should be
confined to one subject unless it is an appropriation
bill or one codifying, revising, or rearranging
existing laws. Bills for appropriations shall be

confined to appropriations.

Al though representative of some nenbers of the ACGA
tax commttee may be attorneys, the tax commttee is
not authorized nor qualified to offer you any |egal
advice or opinion about what the answers to these
guestions mght or mght not be. The npbst we feel we
can properly do under the circunstances is to point
out these potential issues so you can get whatever
prof essional |egal advice you may feel is necessary or
appropriate to answer these questions and to revise

if necessary or prudent, these provisions of the bills
accordingly. And | wuld add here that technically
these are not in the bill in the sense that they are
not in the commttee substitute from Resources, but |
di scussed them because they are on the agenda and it’s
in the original bill.

As | close, M. Chairman, | should nention that AGCGA
has prepared a white paper on aspects of tax credits
since we're on the subject sort of tax credits, under

the proposed bill that falls outside the specific
scope of the present topic. In fact, the white paper
covers the following topics: the 50 percent linmtation

on credits taken the first year for capi tal
investnments, the “TIE" «credits, electric ratepayer
benefits from selling tax credits, and conditioning
exploration tax credits on new requirenments to share
information. W believe the conmttee nenbers m ght
find sone or all of these points to be of interest and

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 43- Oct ober 30, 2007



with your permssion | wuld like to have that be
submtted as part of the record.

CHAI R FRENCH r esponded he woul d be happy to take that in.

3:11: 27 PM

SENATOR THERRI AULT suggested that the drafter had patterned the
| anguage after other sub-funds of the general fund that retain
their interest and it my be worth having the |egal division
look at it. He didn't think it would create a problem If the
| egislature in the future did not go through this separate fund
nmechanism to repay the credits, that doesn’'t nean the credits
woul dn’t be honored. Future |egislatures could have different
ways of honoring the state’s conmm t nent.

3:12:55 PM

JERRY BURNETT, Director, Adm nistrative Services D vision
Depart nent of Revenue, said he agreed with M. WIllians that the
| egi sl ature would have to appropriate the interest each year in
order for the departnent to be able to spend it. The dedication
of funds issue can be taken care of in the annual appropriation
bill and it would be their intent to do it that way.

CHAI R FRENCH asked about the anti-lapse provisions being in an
appropriation bill as opposed to this one.

MR. BURNETT replied that the intent of this legislation clearly
can’t deal with appropriations, so he intended to put the |apse
| anguage in the appropriation bill.

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked if their main concern is having a fund
that is not sweepable. M. Burnett replied yes.

CHAIR FRENCH asked M. Scott if he wanted to respond to sone of
the coments made with on transportation costs. He replied no.

3:14:53 PM
SENATOR THERRI AULT asked for producers who are owners of the
means of transportation, if the state has to be careful in

applying a reasonable rate to all shippers because sone of them
actually pay that rate.

MR. SCOIT replied that is exactly right. So for TAPS, for
exanple, there are a nunber of conpanies that have production on
the North Slope who ship through TAPS or sell to other parties
who ship through TAPS and don’'t own any interest in TAPS. For
those parties, the reasonable costs really should be their

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -44- Oct ober 30, 2007



actual costs because they really do pay it. The primary function
of the tariff for an affiliate producer is to affect their tax
and royalty distributions to the state.

CHAIR FRENCH said he wanted to hear from a producer with no
interest in TAPS before the conmttee takes final action on the
proposed anmendnments. He said they would next take up the cost of
the spill and how SB 2001 prohibits producers from deducting the
costs of unusual events fromtheir production taxes.

3:17:16 PM

BERNARD HAJNY, WManager, Production Taxes and Royalties Al aska,
BP Exploration Alaska, testified that their Prudhoe Bay manager
testified that the cost to replace the oil transit lines is
currently in the range of $250 million to $260 m|li on.

CHAIR FRENCH asked if those costs had been spent or wll be
spent or both.

MR. HAINY replied that some will be spent in cal endar year 2007
and the remainder will be in 2008. That is the expected total.

3:19:20 PM
SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI asked if that cost was all incurred by BP
or if other parties are participating.

MR, HAINY replied that expenditure would be borne by the
operating unit with BP as the operator.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI surm sed the cost woul d be spread around.
MR. HAINY replied yes.

SENATOR W ELECHOWMWBKI asked if BP intends to wite off the ful
anount as a deduction under the current PPT.

MR. HAINY referred him back to Doug Suttle’'s letter to the
| egi sl ature on February 15, 2007 where he indicated BP intended
to deduct the cost of inspection, business resunption, and
repl acenent of the oil transit |ines.

There being no further business to conme before the commttee
t he neeting was adjourned at 3:22:02 PM

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -45- Oct ober 30, 2007



